

The freedom to be. The responsibility to do.

8151 Warriner Rd. Henrico, Virginia 23231

Phone: 804-750-2300 Fax: 804-750-2301

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE OF HANDBOOK	5
GOVERNANCE	5
MISSION	5
VISION	5
PHILOSOPHY	5
SCHOOL VALUES	5
1. ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES	6
1.1 Hours of Operation/Supervision	6
1.2 Inclement Weather Delays	6
1.3 Absences and Tardies	6
1.4 Late Arrivals and Early Dismissals	7
1.5 After-School	8
1.6 Weather-Related Schedule Changes	8
1.7 Parent Communication Tools	8
1.71 Toddle	8
1.72 Slack	8
1.73 Email	9
1.8 Dress Code	9
1.9 Student Accounts	10
1.91 TUIO	10
1.10 Lunch and Snack	10
1.11 Permissions for Trips and Student Activities	10
1.12 Records Review	10
1.13 Release of Records	10
1.14 Student Drivers	11
1.15 Lynnhaven School Provided Student Transportation	11
2. HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY	11
2.1 Accidents, Injuries, and Illnesses	11
2.2 Contagious and Infectious Disease	12
2.3 COVID-19 Policy	12
2.31 Social Agreement	12
2.32 Closing Campus	13
2.33 Common Symptoms	13
2.34 Requirements for Re-Entry After Positive COVID-19 Test Result	14
2.35 Missed Academic Work	14

2.4 Alcohol and Substance Abuse	14
2.5 Concussion Protocols	15
2.51 Return to Learn	15
2.6 Contraband	15
2.7 Crisis Prevention and Safety Management Responses	15
2.8 Health Forms	15
2.9 Medication	16
2.10 Violence and Prevention	17
2.11 Personal Property	17
2.12 School Property	18
3. ACADEMIC POLICY	18
3.1 Academic Period	18
3.2 Academic Evaluation Philosophy	18
3.3 Academic Evaluation	18
3.31 Exemplars	18
3.32 Extra Credit	18
3.4 School Supplies	19
3.5 Technology Requirements	19
3.6 Honor Code	20
3.7 Honor Oath	20
3.8 Homework and Assignments	20
3.8 Student-Athletes	20
3.9 Late Assignments	20
3.10 Course Retakes	21
3.11 Parent Conferences	21
3.12 Student Support	21
3.13 Academic Letter (Golden "L" Award)	22
3.14 Dual Enrollment	22
3.15 Independent Study	22
4. SENIOR GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS	22
4.1 Requirements for Graduation	22
4.2 Experiential Learning Requirement	27
4.3 Cultural Diversity Requirement	28
4.4 Practical Arts Requirement	28
4.5 Citizenship Requirement	28
4.6 Research Requirement	28
4.7 Post-Graduate Planning	28

4.8 College Counseling	29
4.9 Standardized Testing	29
5. CODE OF CONDUCT	29
5.1 Bullying	30
5.2 Cheating	31
5.3 Plagiarism	32
5.4 Defiance	33
5.5 Disruption	34
5.6 Disrespect	35
5.7 Tobacco Products	37
5.8 Substance Abuse	37
5.9 Assaulting/Fighting/Threats	38
5.10 Larceny/Theft	39
5.11 Trespassing	40
5.12 Vandalism	41
5.13 Sexual Harassment	42
5.14 Transportation	43
5.15 Arson	44
5.16 Dangerous Weapon or Firearm	45
5.17 Technology	46
5.18 Grievance Procedure	47
5.19 Student Behavior Management	47
6. ACCEPTABLE USE OF TECHNOLOGY POLICY	48
6.1 Purpose of Technology	48
6.2 Risks of Use	48
6.3 Acceptable Use	49
6.4 Internet Safety	50
6.5 Student Privacy	50
7. PERSONAL CELL PHONES/ELECTRONIC DEVICES	51

#### PURPOSE OF HANDBOOK

This handbook provides an overview of the Lynnhaven School program and describes the expectations for the behavior and conduct of our students. This handbook may be updated from time to time at the discretion of the Lynnhaven School administration. Should you have any questions regarding the information contained in the handbook or if the handbook does not address your concern, please contact the Head of School.

### **GOVERNANCE**

The school's Board of Trustees governs the school by setting the school's mission, vision, philosophy, and policies, by providing for the resources of the school, and by employing the Head of School to carry out the school's program. The Head of School employs all other faculty and staff members and establishes specific procedures to achieve the school's mission. The Administrative Team consists of the following persons:

Head of School	Casey Hitchcock
Assistant Head of School for Finance and Operations	Robin Thomas
Dean of Technology and Innovation.	James Frago
Dean of Enrollment Management.	Alyson LeMaster
Dean of Teaching and Innovation.	LaShanda Melendez
Director of Facilities	Chase Radovic
Director of Transportation.	Sha'Kira Powell

### **MISSION**

Lynnhaven School provides a social learning experience built on the principles of progressive education. Each and every student is expected to pursue successes, celebrate victories, and learn from defeats. It is through self-reliance, integrity, compassion, and humor that our students embrace and balance the freedom to be with the responsibility to do.

### **VISION**

The world will be changed for the better by those who attend Lynnhaven School.

#### **PHILOSOPHY**

At the Lynnhaven School, we believe a small, hands-on learning environment is the key to offering instruction that is personal, engaging, and effectively preparing students to be lifelong learners. We strive to meet students where they are socially, emotionally, and academically because we understand that education is a process that must be cultivated.

Lynnhaven cultivates learning by addressing seven core areas: critical thinking, curiosity, creativity, connection, collaboration, communication, and civic responsibility. We have found that our students' appetite for learning increases, and they pay more attention to detail when given the opportunity to engage with the material in meaningful ways. By addressing each area of learning, we intentionally teach our students to understand themselves, each other, and the world.

### **SCHOOL VALUES**

JOY ~ PROGRESS ~ RESPECT ~ TRUST ~ DIVERSITY ~ COMPASSION~ INTEGRITY

### 1. ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

## 1.1 Hours of Operation/Supervision

School supervision begins at 8:30 a.m. Lynnhaven is not responsible for students prior to 8:30 am unless there is a school-sanctioned event. The school day begins at 9:00 a.m., and the school day ends with dismissal at 3:15 p.m. Students must be picked up or on the school transportation by 3:30 pm unless participating in a school-sanctioned event or activity. Parents are encouraged to stay up to date with activities and events by viewing Toddle and staying in regular communication with the school. Once a student leaves the school grounds with parents, guardians, or transporter, he/she/they is/are no longer under the supervision of the school. Students are not allowed to leave school grounds during the school day, when waiting to be picked up, or when waiting for an after-school event without permission or supervision.

#### 2023-2024 Block Schedule

3:15 pm

### Monday-Thursday

9:00 am-9:10 am	<b>Morning Meeting</b>
9:10 am-10:40 am	1st Block Class
10:40 am-11:00 am	Break
11:00 am-12:30 pm	2nd Block Class
12:30 pm-1:05 pm	Lunch
1:05 pm- 2:35 pm	3rd Block Class
2:35 pm- 3:10	Explore
3:15 pm	Dismissal

### Friday Schedule

9:00 am-10:00 am	Lab
10:00 am-10:15 am	Morning Break
10:15 am-12:15pm	<b>Experiential Elective</b>
12:15 pm-12:45 pm	Lunch
12:45 pm-2:45 pm	<b>Experiential Elective</b>
2:45 pm-3:15 pm	<b>EXPLORE</b>
3:15	Dismissal

## 1.2 Inclement Weather Delays

In the event of inclement weather that does NOT result in closing school, Lynnhaven School will announce a 10 am start time.

Delays will be communicated as detailed in the Weather-Related Changes of Schedule on page 8 of the handbook.

#### 1.3 Absences and Tardies

All absences must be requested in Toddle. Please include reasons & images of all doctor's notes.

It is expected that students come to school every day. The scope of our instruction requires daily attendance. When students miss school or arrive late, it disrupts their own learning and the learning of others. We utilize collaboration and a level of academic spontaneity that cannot be reproduced for a student who is late or absent. Students are responsible for getting their missed work, not the parent.

#### 1.31 Excused Absence

An excused absence is one due to a medical illness or one that has been excused by the Head of School or designee. Except for absences due to medical illness, permission for an excused absence must be requested four weeks in advance. A student whose absence has been excused by the school is entitled to make up tests and quizzes on the first day of their return. Students will be given equal time to days missed to complete missed class and homework assignments. Faculty will not provide assignments to students ahead of time to be graded upon their return to school for a family-related absence due to non-illness or cover instruction missed as a result of an extended family vacation or related function, i.e., sporting events for siblings, graduation, prom, etc.

## Excused absence example:

- Illness (absences exceeding two consecutive days require a physician statement)
- Medical/Dental appointments (we highly encourage you to make these appointments outside of school hours).
- Serious family emergency (i.e. funeral)
- School-sanctioned team events
- Family vacations, not to exceed four days, that have been pre-approved by the Head of School four weeks in advance

### 1.32 Mental Health Day (MHD)

The school understands that there may be an occasion when a student may need some time to regroup, refresh, and/or recharge their mental or physical energy to present the best version of themselves at school. Therefore, each student is entitled to exercise one (1) Mental Health Day on Friday per semester. Each MHD is in addition to the excused absences outlined above.

#### 1 33 Unexcused Absence

An *unexcused absence* is one that has not been excused by the Head of School or designee. Students who miss school for an unexcused absence will not be permitted to make up any work missed.

### Unexcused absence example:

- Oversleeping/alarm failure
- Leaving school during the regular school day without approval of the Head of School or designee for non-emergency situations.
- Employment/job interview
- Family vacations that have not been pre-approved
- Car trouble

### Missing your ride

The school's policy is if a student misses more than 4 days of class meeting times per semester due to unexcused absences, they will receive an incomplete for the course and must complete additional work in that course during winter or summer break in order to receive credit. In the event that additional work is required and not completed, the student will not receive credit for the course.

Parents are encouraged to review the school calendar in advance for planned absences. Professional Development days are an optimal time to schedule appointments. Requests for early dismissal or late arrival should be in writing and in advance of the scheduled absence and documented in Toddle. The student is responsible for obtaining notes and assignments and for making up all work missed during their excused absence.

### 1.4 Late Arrivals and Early Dismissals

Families are expected to make all reasonable efforts to assure that students arrive at school prior to the start of the school day. Students are considered late after 9:00 am. PARENTS must sign in their student through the School Safe ID System located outside the Main Office if arriving after 9:00 am or picking up before 3:15 pm. Any student that is dropped off or picked up without signing in/out with the Main Office will be considered absent. For every five (5) unexcused late arrivals or early dismissals per semester, a student's unexcused absence allowance will be reduced by one (1) day and will be marked in Toddle.

Students are not entitled to make up quizzes or in-class assignments for unexcused late arrivals to school or early dismissals. The student shall be responsible for initiating and making up all work missed as a result of an excused early dismissal or excused late arrival. All work missed must be turned in on the day of their early dismissal or arrival, in accordance with the work due dates.

### 1.5 After-School

Students must be in a Club or Athletic Activity in order to stay after school. There are NO after-school activities on Fridays.

### 1.6 Weather-Related Schedule Changes

In the event of a weather-related change in the schedule, the school will activate our notification system, communicating via **text** to share information. In addition, the school announces emergency closings or late openings due to weather through local news outlets. Decisions to close school, open late, or dismiss early are made by the Leadership Team in accordance with the school crisis management and safety policies.

Weather conditions are sometimes variable over the greater metropolitan area. Although the school may remain open at times of inclement weather, parents may decide at any time that conditions are sufficiently poor enough for them to keep their child at home, come later, or leave early. The school will work cooperatively with parents at these times for the student's safety.

#### 1.7 Parent Communication Tools

#### **1.71 Toddle**

Toddle is where you will find your calendar, students' information, such as grades, daily work, and attendance information. Toddle is also the platform to communicate directly with faculty. Faculty will not email you directly but will send you messages through Toddle. We encourage you to download the Toddle App, it can be found on the Apple store HERE.

### 1.72 Slack

Lynnhaven uses Slack to build community. It is intended for parents to communicate with one another. The PARENT & HOUSE channels are NOT monitored by staff. **Staff ONLY monitor transportation, club, and athletic channels that require real-time response.** We recommend having the Slack app downloaded to your phone. The platform is also available via computer. The following community guidelines are in place:

- 1. All communications in Slack must be respectful of the school and one another. At no time will disruptive or disrespectful language or images be tolerated. Members found in violation will be dismissed from the Lynnhaven Slack community.
- 2. Be respectful and mindful of people's time. While it can be easy to expect an immediate response on a messaging platform like Slack, remember that the members of our Slack community have a variety of commitments. Questions directed toward the school will be answered during operational hours.
- 3. Slack conversations are intended to stay within the Lynnhaven community. Parents may not take screenshots of conversations to post publicly or otherwise share with others who were not the intended recipient of the original message without the consent of the author(s) of the message.

### **1.73** Email

Lynnhaven School uses e-mail to communicate from admin to parent, parent groups, or school-wide. Parents may e-mail admin directly. Parents and students are discouraged from e-mailing faculty directly and encouraged to use Toddle. Faculty will respond to parent and student e-mails using Toddle messages.

#### 1.8 Dress Code

Lynnhaven embraces creativity and unique style as they relate to clothing. We expect all students to convey a sense of respect for themselves, for others, for the school, and for the serious academic endeavor in which we all are engaged. Students' dress and presentation should reflect personal and school standards of cleanliness, neatness, and respect. There will be times when formal or semi-formal attire will be required for school-sponsored events such as graduation, spring formal, career day, field trips, and any special day the school designates. Advanced notices about such events will be communicated to the student and parent. Attire levels are outlined below:

**LYNX Casual:** Lynnhaven Shirt with appropriate pants/skirts/shorts and shoes for the event. This attire level will be used most commonly for field trips.

**BUSINESS Casual:** Chino Style Slacks (Khaki or Navy), Polo/golf shirts, or buttoned-down shirts. A blazer, blouse, or cardigan top with slacks, or a knee-length skirt also works as well. Crocs are not permitted. This attire level will be most commonly worn for presentations or award events.

**BUSINESS Professional:** Skirt or pants suit with closed-toed dress shoes, ties are optional. This attire level will be most commonly worn for professional events like pitch night, Model UN, or other similar event.

**FORMAL:** Suit or formal dress/gown. This attire level will be most commonly worn for formal events like Prom.

The school reserves the right to deny attendance or entry to any event if the appropriate attire is not followed. Any clothing or personal appearance that is disrespectful or detracts from our purpose for being at school is not acceptable. The Head of School or designee has the final authority in what constitutes appropriate dress. Exceptions are allowed for medical and religious reasons. Students who are in violation of the Dress Code will be asked to remedy the situation. Depending on the nature of the violation, students may be asked to:

- Change into more appropriate clothing
- Call home to have more appropriate clothing brought to school

### 1.9 Student Accounts

The Assistant Head of School for Finance and Operations is responsible for accurate assessment of charges to students' accounts, timely issuance of billing statements and processing of payments to Lynnhaven School for charges assessed to students' accounts. Parents and individuals authorized to access student account information may contact the Assistant Head of School for Finance and Operations by phone at 804.750.2300 or by email rthomas@lynnhavenschool.org.

#### 1.91 TUIO

Lynnhaven School uses TUIO as our tuition invoicing and payment service. Lynnhaven families have real-time access to this information 24/7 at https://tuiopay.com/.

### 1.10 Lunch and Snack

Lynnhaven does not have a lunch program. Students are responsible for bringing their lunch. It is not the school's responsibility to provide lunch for students who forget it. The school will call the parent if the student forgets their lunch. Parents may not have lunch delivered to the school, e.g. Papa John's or Jimmy John's. **No utensils will be provided.** Microwave ovens are available for student use.

No-Spill water bottles are allowed and encouraged during class. Drinks other than water are not permitted in the classrooms but may be brought for lunch.

### 1.11 Permissions for Trips and Student Activities

At the beginning of the school year, parents sign medical releases and general forms. At various times during the year, the school may ask for signed permission slips for field trips. The permission slips usually involve special circumstances, such as changes in the school schedule.

### 1.12 Records Review

Parents and legal guardians of a student enrolled at Lynnhaven School may have copies of their educational records of their child, which include transcripts, report cards, discipline referrals, and enrollment documents, provided their account is in good financial standing. Electronic correspondences between faculty, staff, parents, and individuals who are involved with the school are not subject to a records review, nor will copies be provided. Lynnhaven School charges a fee of \$.25 per page for copies of educational records. The request must be made using the REQUEST FORM on LynxNet in the Parent Resource Board. Once approved, the records requested will be made available within 15 business days. Any persons with rightful access to these records may arrange to see them by appointment with the Head of School or designee. The presence of the Head of School or designee during the records review provides an opportunity for discussion of any questions regarding the records and for the school to become more aware of any concerns the parents or guardians might have about the child's progress. Parents or individuals with rightful access to records may not take pictures of documents during the review.

#### 1.13 Release of Records

Transcripts and other school records may be sent to other schools, colleges, or agencies upon receipt of written authorization signed by the parent or guardian. Requests for letters of recommendation for enrollment in programs other than Lynnhaven will be sent directly to the organization listed on the form and will not be given to the recipient or parent/guardian. It is Lynnhaven's policy to not share a letter of recommendation on behalf of the student to the parent unless the parent waives this right by indicating on the recommendation form. Release forms should specify exactly what records are to be released and a specific name and address for the recipient. A release form may be obtained from the school office and should be signed and returned to the school office for processing. Student accounts, including tuition and incidentals, must be in good financial standing for such records to be released.

#### 1.14 Student Drivers

Students who drive to and from school must register their car with the school office and comply with school parking and campus regulations. Student drivers must have a signed Student Transportation Form on file and are required to submit a copy of the vehicle insurance, registration, and copy of driver's license to the front office. Drivers who drive at unsafe speeds, demonstrate poor driving, reckless, or inconsiderate behavior (such as excessive volume of the stereo) while entering, leaving, or on school grounds will be reported to their parents. Such behavior may also cause the student to lose the right to park their vehicles on school property or receive other consequences issued by the Head of School or designee. All vehicles must have proper inspections and tags per state law. Student drivers are not permitted to take other students home or to other destinations without a written waiver and release of liability that is electronically acknowledged via the Student Transportation form by the parent/guardian, the

**driver's parents/guardians, and the school.** Phone calls or email permissions will not be accepted but for emergencies only. Vehicles parked on school property are subject to search in accordance with the Health and Safety Policy outlined in the handbook.

## 1.15 Lynnhaven School Provided Student Transportation

Lynnhaven does not provide transportation for students to and from their homes. Students may be transported on field trips or athletic activities by a Lynnhaven vehicle or chartered coach. Students are not permitted to be transported in faculty or staff vehicles. Parents and guardians who may chaperone a field trip, may transport students other than their own, given that both parents/guardians give written permission to the office prior to leaving.

### 2. HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY

## 2.1 Accidents, Injuries, and Illnesses

The school keeps signed medical release forms on file in the event of emergencies. If a student becomes ill while at school, she/he will be sent to the designated staff. If it is determined that a student should go home due to illness or injury, the school will communicate with parents. If neither parent or guardian can be reached, the emergency contact will be called. Students who drive to school and who are determined they must go home, will not be permitted to drive themselves home or to their final destination. Students are not permitted to initiate this communication chain. Any accidents or injuries received at school should be reported to the designated staff. In accordance with the school's policy for handling potential blood-borne pathogens, students are not to touch or come in contact with the blood of another person. Teachers are prepared to get help for the injured child and instructed to disinfect an area in which blood has been spilled in an accident. Such instances or emergencies or instances of administration of first aid will be documented and communicated with the parent within a reasonable time. As a courtesy, please inform the school of injuries occurring outside of school.

### 2.2 Contagious and Infectious Disease

In order to safeguard the school community from the spread of contagious and infectious diseases, the Head of School will implement procedures ensuring that Lynnhaven is in compliance with VDH rules and regulations regarding the presence of persons who have or have been exposed to infectious diseases.

The following guidelines serve the best interest of all students and staff. The following symptoms require your student to remain at home until cleared by a medical professional or until symptoms have passed and the student has been without medication for 24 hours:

- A fever of 100 degrees Fahrenheit or higher\*
- A diagnosed contagious illness
- Vomiting the night before or the morning of a new school day.\*
- Diarrhea, stomach pain, or cramping.
- Red, swollen, irritated eyes with or without discharge.\*
- Nasal drainage that requires constant care.\*

- Frequent or constant coughing.\*
- Head lice and/or nits

Exceptions to the above policy must be documented by a medical professional (i.e. known allergies). \*Will require COVID-19 testing per the policy below

## 2.3 COVID-19 Policy

COVID-19 has greatly impacted the entire country. The economic, educational, and social infrastructure has been compromised. The decision was made in March 2020 that Lynnhaven should update the contagious infectious disease policies and procedures because of COVID-19. The following policies and procedures are in effect based on the most recent guidance from the CDC and VDH to help mitigate risk.

These updated policies and procedures will remain in effect until further notice.

### 2.31 Social Agreement

By agreeing to send students to Lynnhaven and enter into our supervision during the school day the faculty, staff, students, and parents are engaging in a social contract and accepting the liability of in-person learning. For the health of our community, we strongly recommend vaccinations and staying current with eligible booster shots. Though it is identified by the VDH to be low to moderate-risk activity, it is expected that all parents, students, faculty, and staff follow the VDH guidelines and be forthcoming with any symptoms of infectious diseases, especially COVID-19. As such:

The following COVID-19 policies are in place (updated guidance is BOLD) and will remain in effect until further notice:

- Any student who presents symptoms of COVID-19 is recommended to test for the virus regardless of vaccination status.
- Any student who has tested positive for COVID-19 MUST remain at home for at least five consecutive days and upon the return to school, remain masked at all times (with the exception of eating or drinking) for an additional 5 consecutive days.
- The main office MUST be notified of positive COVID-19 test results.
- If a student presents symptoms of COVID-19 while at school the student will be isolated in the designated space and required to wear a mask. The Front Office will notify the parents or emergency contact and require them to pick up the student from school within one hour.
- If a student is sent home due to illness, Lynnhaven WILL mandate testing for COVID-19 (rapid tests are accepted).
- ALL fully vaccinated persons who enter the school building have the OPTION of wearing a mask.

The following COVID-19 Mitigation efforts are in place. Our faculty will continue to support good hand washing hygiene and respiratory etiquette.

- If you have had a known exposure to someone who has tested positive for COVID-19 it is recommended that you mask for 10 days regardless of vaccination status.
- Lynnhaven will continue to contact parents with COVID-19 exposure notifications in the event two or more members of our community test positive after mutual exposure is identified (classified as an outbreak) per VDH/CDC guidance.
- Lynnhaven recommends COVID-19 vaccinations as the best way to protect yourself from serious illness and hospitalization.

### 2.32 Closing Campus

Lynnhaven will evaluate the need to temporarily close campus due to COVID-19 based on contact tracing efforts.

### 2.33 Common Symptoms

Headache AND/OR one other symptom from the list:

- 1. Fever of 100 degrees
- 2. Chills
- 3. Repeated shaking with chills
- 4. Muscle pain
- 5. Sore throat
- 6. New loss of taste or smell
- 7. Diarrhea
- 8. Vomiting
- 9. Cough
- 10. Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing

## 2.34 Requirements for Re-Entry After Positive COVID-19 Test Result

All persons must be cleared of any contagious or infectious stage of illness to be determined by a physician, provide a COVID-19 NEGATIVE test, or meet the required quarantine amount before allowing the person to return.

### 2.35 Missed Academic Work

The school will work closely with the student and the family to help the student keep up with work missed as appropriate to the student's need for rest and recovery and within the limits of what can be accomplished without direct classroom instruction.

### 2.4 Alcohol and Substance Abuse

In keeping with our concern for the healthy development of our students, we encourage open, confidential communications between parent and child and early identification and prevention of use of illegal substances.

The possession, abuse, or illegal use of drugs or alcohol, or tobacco/vaping/electronic cigarette products on the school premises, events sanctioned by the School, or on school trips is strictly forbidden and places the student's enrollment in jeopardy. Parents and visitors of the school may not smoke, vape, or use tobacco products on campus or on school-sponsored events. Law enforcement officials will be called when required by law.

If the school has a reasonable suspicion that a student is using, used, possesses, or has knowledge of a student with alcohol, tobacco or drug use, the Head of School or designee will convey their concerns to the student and to the student's parents. The school may ask for the device(s) if it is reasonably suspected the student has one. The school reserves the right to communicate and formally interview a student in these instances without parent approval. Reasonable suspicion may i nclude noticeable behavioral changes, the perceived smell of such substances, concerns related to substance abuse as expressed by peers, any unusual behaviors or behavior patterns similar to those typically found in instances of substance abuse. The school considers these proactive communications to be confidential to the extent permitted by law. It is our hope that early communication of concern or possible warning signs could prevent the possibility of more definitive patterns of risk-taking, negative behavior, and more severe consequences.

If parents have any concerns about their child's change of behaviors or tendency to take unhealthy risks, they should feel free to discuss their concerns confidentially first with the Head of School. When the parents take the initiative with the school, the school and family can work together on behalf of the young person to prevent and solve problems that either one would have difficulty tackling alone. The school may offer outside counseling for families who may face these issues. Lynnhaven School is also a mandated reporter of suspected child abuse or neglect. Please refer to the Code of Conduct for more information.

## 2.5 Concussion Protocols

RETURN TO PLAY: A student who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or brain injury during a practice, a game, or recess class shall be removed from activity immediately, and shall not return to play that same day, and will not begin the process of re-entering activity until evaluated and cleared for activity in writing by a licensed healthcare provider. If a student is suspected of sustaining a concussion, the parent should seek medical evaluation for the child as soon as possible.

#### 2.51 Return to Learn

A student who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or brain injury during a school-sponsored activity or outside of school should be evaluated by a licensed healthcare professional who has experience managing concussions for guidance about when it's safe to return to school as well as appropriate levels of cognitive and physical activity throughout the recovery process. Documentation must be provided to the school so that the faculty can work appropriately with the student during the recovery phase.

### 2.6 Contraband

Weapons, firearms, or explosives, are prohibited on the school premises, on school trips, or in school activities. For the safety of our community, the school reserves the right to inspect any school-owned property or personal property. Please refer to the Code of Conduct for more information.

### 2.7 Crisis Prevention and Safety Management Responses

The school has a Crisis Management and Disaster Response Plan that addresses preparation for and management of potential disruptions to the school's daily functioning. The plan's top priority is to maintain an effective environment for enhancing the well-being of the student, faculty, and staff as they pursue their work at the school. The primary objective in a time of crisis is to quickly adjust the school community situation from one of effective appropriate emergency responses to one of relative control, with timely movement toward healing and returning to the learning process.

Among other topics, this plan instructs the faculty, staff, students, and campus volunteers regarding the school's specific responses to various crises. It includes specific procedures and drills for emergency evacuation of the buildings, for a lock-down of the building, response to a dangerous intruder(s), and a drill for seeking emergency shelter from severe storms, tornadoes, or airborne threats. Students, faculty, and staff practice these drills according to state law in order to prepare for safe and effective responses to an emergency.

### 2.8 Health Forms

The following health forms may be required for students and are available from the Main Office:

## Athletic Participation/Parental Consent/Physical Examination Form

- Students must have a completed annual Physical on file **before** they can participate in athletics.
- Portions of this form need to be completed by the student, parent, and a physician.

## Administration of Medication Forms - This form should be completed if:

- The student should take any medication at school (prescription or non-prescription).
- The student should be allowed to carry a prescribed inhaler or epi-pen with his or her belongings or have one available in the first aid station. The prescription to carry the inhaler or epi-pen on the student's person must be clearly stated on the device.
- The student is taking medication at home before leaving in the morning and may need to have a small supply on hand stored in the first aid station in case he or she forgets to take it at home and needs to take it at school.
- The parent may permit the school to dispense some over-the-counter medications to their student as needed.

## School Entrance Immunization Certification - This form should be completed:

- Each year as part of the enrollment process.
- If your child is starting the school year as a new student.
- If there have been any changes to the student's vaccine record.

## Medical Authorizations - This form should be completed to:

- Provide authorizations in case medical emergency treatment is needed for your student
- Provide the school with additional medical information regarding your student

#### 2.9 Medication

Unless otherwise prescribed, any medication (prescribed or "over-the-counter") must be kept in the main office or designated area for dispensing. These medications must be brought to the school office by an adult and accompanied by a signed authorization from a physician that includes specific instructions for administration. Any medication must be in the original container and accompanied by a written order from the doctor regarding instructions for dispensing to the student. Under no circumstances will any medication be dispensed without the proper forms. The designated staff will release medications only as prescribed by the doctor or physician. The fact of a standing prescription of any medication should be noted on the annual health form. The school will notify parents when 50% of the medication has been dispensed. This will help the parent get refills in a timely manner, if necessary.

In order to allow a student to carry an inhaler or epi-pen, the parent or guardian and physician must also complete a medical authorization form. If a parent/guardian and physician request that the student not carry these medications, the medications will be kept in the First Aid Station in the main office. Even if the student carries these aids as prescribed, an extra inhaler or EpiPen must be supplied by the parent/guardian to be kept in the main office in case of emergency.

Any medical condition requiring special attention and/or medications such as: diabetes, epilepsy, severe allergies, etc., should be reported on the annual health form and discussed with the Head of School or designee. Such medical conditions discovered during the school year should also be brought to the attention of the Head of School or designee.

The student is responsible for going to the First Aid Station at the appropriate time to receive the medication. However, the designated personnel will work cooperatively to help students taking daily medication to get into the habit of taking care of this responsibility. Parents who are interested may call the school to check on the student's patterns of coming for such medication.

#### 2.10 Violence and Prevention

Commonwealth of Virginia regulations require Lynnhaven School to include a statement of violence prevention policy, to include prevention of self-injurious behavior.

While incidents of student violence at Lynnhaven School are extremely rare, the School has nonetheless maintained a variety of measures to, among other reasons, prevent instances of student violence and self-injurious behavior. These include:

- Early intervention through the School's low student-teacher ratio, house advisor system, and school values and philosophy on discipline
- Communication with parents, the advisor, administration, and outside counselor (if applicable) in the event of a student's emerging tendency toward violence
- Faculty supervision at lunch, and after school, and well-defined on and off limit areas for students
- Faculty advising and assemblies that offer students positive alternatives to unacceptable behaviors, including violence

If the School becomes aware of a student's potential tendency toward self-harm or harm to other students or staff, the student may not be permitted to attend school without a note from an attending psychologist or qualified mental health professional stating that the student is no longer a threat to self or others. Such knowledge to inflict self-harm may be communicated directly by the student, indirectly from the student by way of a peer, written via email or other documentation, or by parents and or family members.

Behavior management techniques are applied in order of their degree of intrusiveness or restrictiveness. The decision to use behavior management techniques of increasing degrees of intrusiveness or restrictiveness will be at the discretion of the Head of School or designee, and only when less intrusive or restrictive techniques have proven ineffective.

Physical restraint or seclusion is allowed only in an emergency situation and only when necessary for a time period to protect the student or others from imminent danger of serious harm, and only after less intrusive interventions have been attempted and have failed to manage that particular behavior, and where there is a substantial explanation for why the other interventions were deemed inadequate or inappropriate. The need for such measures is extremely rare at Lynnhaven School. A conduct report will be written as soon as appropriate following an incident involving the use of physical restraint or seclusion.

The use of restraint or seclusion, particularly if there is repeated use for an individual child, multiple uses within the same classroom or office, or multiple uses by the same individual, shall trigger a review and, if appropriate, a revision of behavioral strategies currently in place to address dangerous behavior. Please refer to the Code of Conduct for more information.

### 2.11 Personal Property

Students should leave valuable personal property not used for instruction at home. Please refer to the Code of Conduct for more information. The school cannot be responsible for keeping clothing or property that is not adequately labeled or for personal property not stored, locked, or carried as suggested. All outerwear and layered clothing should be labeled or initiated for possible return if misplaced. It is not the school's responsibility to label these items. Any items left in lost and found for one week will be discarded to a local charity, i.e. Goodwill.

## 2.12 School Property

Any breakage or damage to school property, accidental or otherwise, should be reported immediately to the main office. Although occasional accidents are expected in a school setting, vandalism will not be tolerated. Please refer to the Code of Conduct for more information.

### 3. ACADEMIC POLICY

### 3.1 Academic Period

Lynnhaven's academic calendar operates on a semester academic period.

### 3.2 Academic Evaluation Philosophy

Lynnhaven's progressive education philosophy encourages students to be lifelong learners.

As such, the accomplishment is the learning itself, not the receiving of a letter grade. Lynnhaven uses a progressive evaluation approach to grading that involves three key features:

- 1. A clear list of learning targets, objectives, or standards that can be found in our robust curriculum. Students are given access to a list of learning targets and what skills are necessary in order to meet those targets.
- 2. Assessment of mastery instead of points or partial credit. Student work is graded based on mastery of the associated learning target(s) using a scale from "developing" to "exemplary"
- 3. Learning targets matter. Students are given multiple attempts to demonstrate understanding and quality and are not penalized for failing to demonstrate understanding and quality on earlier attempts. Within each semester, students are given opportunities to revise, resubmit, and/or retry their work until the final deadline.

### 3.3 Academic Evaluation

### 3.31 Exemplars

Exemplars are students who receive EXEMPLARY in all subjects in a given grading period.

### 3.32 Extra Credit

Extra credit is not permitted.

Abbreviation	Value		Description
EXMP	Exemplary	$\oslash$	Student builds on their strength by being able to adapt the skill/work to novel situations or beyond the basic requirements. The student can concretely relate their work to related topics, information, global needs, and situations. Their work is consistently described as innovative, easily understood, well-executed, and valuable, and displays a deep understanding of the content.
ACC	Accomplished	$\oslash$	Reflects an understanding of the content. The work may have flashes of excellence and also may include small inaccuracies or omissions while still meeting set expectations. The student understands the principles of the work, which enables them to execute it appropriately and coach/teach others. Students can demonstrate relevance to the context of each project while adding new insights, observations, and ideas. Students can thoroughly discuss the work, how to use it, and relay the decisions they've made along the way.
APR	Approaching	$\oslash$	Although the student has some understanding of the content, they have not met all the basic requirements to demonstrate mastery. The student can see the work of others and mimic it effectively for their own work. They can replicate style and format to achieve similar results to what they have observed in the classroom. They rely heavily on the ideas and insights of others to complete their work.
EMR	Emerging	$\oslash$	The student is becoming familiar with the area of work and is just beginning to understand the concepts and terminology. They can contribute with direct support from the teacher. More work is needed to demonstrate mastery.
NR	Not Ready	$\bigcirc$	The student is not ready and/or unwilling to engage with the material.
NA	Not Assessed	$\bigcirc$	Not Assessed



	Grading Scale											
Letter Grade	Start Score	End Score	GPA		Letter Grade	Start Score	End Score	GPA	Letter Grade	Start Score	End Score	GPA
A+	98	100	4.3		В	84	86	3.0	C-	70	73	1.7
Α	94	97	4.0		B-	80	83	2.7	D+	68	69	1.3
A-	90	93	3.7		C+	77	79	2.3	D	65	67	1.0
B+	87	89	3.3		C	74	76	2.0	F	0	64	0.0

## 3.4 School Supplies

The school supply list is made available typically by the end of June. Parents are responsible for purchasing supplies and replenishing as needed throughout the year.

### 3.5 Technology Requirements

Lynnhaven participates in a 1:1 program wherein each student is issued an iPad at the beginning of the year. This iPad and accompanying accessories are for the students to use at home and at school. Parents of students who are assigned an iPad paid a non-refundable annual usage fee as part of their tuition. Users will comply at all times with the Lynnhaven School Parent and Student Handbook policies. Any failure to comply may result in the termination of user rights of possession effective immediately, and Lynnhaven School may repossess the iPad. Lynnhaven School has legal title to the property at all times. The user's right of possession and use is limited to and conditioned upon full and complete compliance with this agreement and the Lynnhaven School Parent and Student Handbook policies. If an iPad is damaged, lost, or stolen, the student or parent/guardian should immediately notify the school administration. If an iPad is lost, stolen, or damaged as a result of irresponsible behavior, the parent will be responsible for the full replacement or repair cost. Students who leave Lynnhaven School during the school year must return the iPad, along with any other issued accessories, at the time they leave the School. The iPad and all accessories should be returned to the Head of School. Any fees collected as a part of this initiative will not be refunded. If the user does not fully comply with all the terms of this Agreement and the Lynnhaven School Parent and Student Handbook, including the timely return of the property, Lynnhaven School shall be entitled to declare the user in default. The user's right to use and possession of the property terminates not later than the last day of the school year unless earlier terminated by Lynnhaven School or upon withdrawal from Lynnhaven.

### 3.6 Honor Code

Lynnhaven School embraces an honor code system that is integral to academic success. Students are expected to act with honesty and integrity in all academic work. Students are taught appropriate techniques for crediting sources and are required to use these at all grade levels. As academic seniority increases, expectations for academic honesty become more stringent.

Plagiarism, cheating, or any other form of academic dishonesty will be viewed as a serious offense and will be subject to an automatic failing grade based on the circumstances. Students suspected of plagiarism or cheating, based on the circumstances, may be expected to provide a successful oral defense of the assignment as well as all rough drafts. In some instances, students will receive a zero for the assignment, or be expected to complete an alternative assignment to meet or surpass the requirements of the original assignment. All Lynnhaven School students are educated about the Honor Code. In certain cases, students may be dismissed from Lynnhaven if they continue and knowingly engage in plagiarism, cheating, or other forms of academic dishonesty. The final decision rests with the Academic Leadership Team.

#### 3.7 Honor Oath

By signing that you have read and understood the Parent and Student Handbook, you are also accepting the responsibility of the following:

With a clear understanding of all that the Honor Code implies, I pledge that I will uphold the school values in every phase of life at Lynnhaven School, and I recognize and accept my responsibility for helping others to live up to those values.

### 3.8 Homework and Assignments

The student's homework and class assignments are his/her/their responsibility. It is a vital component of their academic success. All students will be given homework and class assignments on a regular basis. All assignments will be evaluated and are part of the process to achieve the expressed learning targets.

#### 3.8 Student-Athletes

Student-athletes are expected to complete all school work at the same deadline and rate as non-student athletes. There are no exceptions to extend school work due to games or practices.

### 3.9 Late Assignments

Deadlines to complete work are determined by the course instructor. It is necessary for all students to meet deadlines in order to receive timely feedback and stay engaged with the pace of the course. Students have an opportunity to retake/redo assignments to demonstrate a stronger understanding of the material within the marking period. Deadlines are not extended beyond the marking period.

#### 3.10 Course Retakes

Students will be required to retake a course if they do not demonstrate ACC (Accomplished) on more than 70% of the learning targets for that course. Additionally, students will be required to retake a course (or course equivalent) if they transfer with a traditional lettergrade below C-.

### 3.11 Parent Conferences

Parents are encouraged to communicate with their child's teacher throughout the marking periods. Lynnhaven holds formal conference opportunities as scheduled on the Academic Calendar. Lynnhaven School values the relationship between our students' families and our school staff and considers it to be one of the most important factors in a student's success. It is of paramount importance that students participate in the conference process.

## 3.12 Student Support

All students must meet course or program requirements. Some may require reasonable accommodations beyond what is provided within our Universal Design for Learning (UDL) environment. Accommodations are a reactive process for providing access to a specific student and arise from a **documented need** as outlined in **medical documentation or formal psychoeducational evaluation**.

UDL is the design of education and education environments to be usable by all people, to the greatest extent possible, without the need for adaptation or specialized design. UDL is beneficial to all

students, not just students with disabilities, and begins with asset-based beliefs about students. At Lynnhaven, UDL is one path toward dismantling the inequities of traditional education.

At Lynnhaven, examples of UDL include:

- Arranged seating so that everyone has a clear line of sight.
- Avoidance of undue attention being drawn to differences between students.
- Providing multiple ways to gain and demonstrate knowledge; using multiple senses.
- Providing scaffolding tools (e.g., learning canvas).
- Providing materials in accessible formats.
- Providing corrective opportunities.
- Minimizing time constraints as appropriate.
- Allow for a change in the environment when needed during the school day
- Restrooms to be used without penalty/restriction
- Breaks between classes
- Large projects broken into smaller chunks with clear deadlines
- Reduced course load to three courses per semester
- Time provided to meet with instructors 1:1

Parents will be notified in writing by the Dean of Teaching and Innovation if concerns arise that may require an accommodation determination meeting with the parent. Parents may also initiate the request by emailing the Dean of Teaching and Innovation directly. Lynnhaven requires a current psychoeducational assessment (within two years) or a formal medical diagnosis in order to complete the accommodation determination and implement accommodations.

## 3.13 Academic Letter (Golden "L" Award)

Academic letters are awarded to students who are EXEMPLARS in each of their academic classes at the end of the school year.

### 3.14 Dual Enrollment

Juniors and Seniors may elect to enroll in a college or university to gain college credit. Students may take one class each semester in lieu of taking the course at Lynnhaven, provided a formal written request is made to the Dean for Teaching and Innovation for approval at least one semester prior to the Lynnhaven academic school year. Students must be in good academic standing at the respective community college for the course to count at Lynnhaven School. Students must achieve a passing grade of "C-" or higher for it to count. The cost of participating in a course will be at the expense of the parent/guardian.

## 3.15 Independent Study

Lynnhaven School's independent study courses are student-driven. They entail the approximate amount of work that an upper-level course would require. Most students carry out an academic research project,

which involves writing and submitting a 10-page research paper. However, students may propose a creative research project, an applied research project, or a design-based research project with the approval of a faculty supervisor. Students should decide on their own topic, and then approach an appropriate faculty member to request that s/he direct the independent study. Only one independent study can be completed each year. Students are strongly encouraged to obtain approval from the supervising faculty prior to the semester when the independent study will begin.

### 4. SENIOR GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Students must satisfy the following requirements to successfully graduate from Lynnhaven School.

- Successfully Complete the Course Requirements
- Earn All Mastery Credits
- Fulfill the Experiential Learning Requirement
- Complete the Senior Capstone speech and present at the senior dinner
- Regularly participate in senior activities

## 4.1 Requirements for Graduation

Lynnhaven's portrait of a graduate identifies the skills, abilities, and characteristics of a Lynnhaven graduate after going through our academic program. We want students to "LEAF" Lynnhaven with confidence that they can go forward in any direction they choose with a firm foundation and a continued passion to pursue learning in life. Each required mastery credit directly aligns with a "LEAF" credit area: Leadership, Engagement, Autonomy, and Fundamentals. A student must demonstrate mastery in each credit area in order to fulfill graduation requirements.

Credit Areas	Leadership	Engagement	Autonomy	Fundamentals
	the ability to inspire and influence others to achieve a committed objective.	demonstrating an interest, passion, and investment in their own learning.	having the self-confidence and motivation to think and act independently.	the ability to demonstrate a depth of knowledge and skill proficiency.
Mastery Credits	<ul><li>Collaboration</li><li>Innovation</li></ul>	<ul><li>Perspective</li><li>Impact</li></ul>	Wellbeing     Expression	<ul><li>Content</li><li>Reasoning</li></ul>

Students demonstrate their mastery by submitting evidence into Toddle during their courses or directly to the Dean of Teaching and Innovation in the event the evidence used is from efforts outside of a student's courses. A student is required to have at least one piece of evidence per mastery credit, per year in order to demonstrate growth in mastery. Students may continue to submit evidence until they are consistently showing at least ACC (Accomplished). No credit or partial credit can be given until proficiency, at minimum, is met for each mastery credit. Below is a breakdown of the mastery credits and examples of

where they will be/can be assessed. Students will find opportunities both in their courses and outside the school day. This is not an exhaustive list.

CREDIT AREAS						
Collaboration						
C1. Students will be able to contribute to and work effectively in teams by leveraging various tools and resources, and adapting to multiple roles and facilitating connections of diverse perspectives to accomplish shared goals.	C2. Students will be able to create shared responsibility for collaborative work and value the individual contributions made by each team member to cultivate a culture of community.					
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul><li>Agile Framework</li><li>Club/Team Participation</li></ul>					
Innov	vation					
I1. Students will be able to collaboratively complete design/innovative projects that are vision-inspired and focused on the user experience.	I2. Students will be able to identify a meaningful problem or opportunity, explore creative solutions with a team, produce original work, and determine the best design to revolutionize and positively affect society, testing and revising as necessary.					
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul><li>GIS-Based Solutions project</li><li>History Day presentation</li></ul>					
Perspective						
P1. Students exhibit an understanding of the ways in which the events and forces of the past and present construct/ed the lived experience of the people and civilizations, as well as the ways in which those events and forces contributed to and shaped our world.	P2. Students demonstrate an awareness of their own and other's cultures and perspectives and have respect and empathy for others across differences.					
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul> <li>Course: Spanish I</li> <li>Course: Spanish II</li> <li>Course: Human Geography</li> <li>Courses: Pan - African Studies I &amp; II</li> <li>Club: Model United Nations</li> </ul>					
Imp	pact					
IM1. Students will demonstrate self-respect by establishing and appropriately expressing	IM2. Students can identify a need or challenge in a local or global community and					

the unique values, privileges, and needs associated with their own cultural, racial, political, and interpersonal groups to promote personal well-being, self-advocacy, and contribution to their diverse community.	promote sustainable development through positive action.
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul> <li>Volunteer partnerships with local non-profit organizations</li> <li>Complete 100 Service Hours</li> <li>Course: Flora &amp; Fauna</li> <li>Course: Environmental Policy &amp; Practice</li> <li>Course: Government &amp; Policy</li> <li>Course: GIS-Based Solutions</li> </ul>
Welli	peing
W1. Students will be able to apply self-awareness to assess and monitor needs, set goals and routines, and self-advocate for the support they need to develop balance through mental, physical and social-emotional wellness.	W2. Student perseveres through challenges and sees setbacks and losses not as failures, but as opportunities for growth. They are open to, and actively soliciting feedback from others in an effort to continuously grow and improve.
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul> <li>Course: Seminar I &amp; II</li> <li>Best Practice: Agile/eduSCRUM</li> <li>Course: Composition</li> <li>Course: Advanced Wellness</li> </ul>
Expre	ession
E1. Students will be able to interpret meaning from others' communications, adapt their responses, and apply understanding in relevant contexts.	E2. Students express themselves, their perspectives, ideas, opinions, and emotions by creating original work. Through art, music, written/verbal expression, or other mediums appropriate for different environments and audiences.
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul> <li>Project: Podcasting</li> <li>Club: Maker Society</li> <li>Course: Composition</li> <li>Club: Model UN</li> </ul>
Con	itent
Co1. Students will be able to analyze, synthesize and transfer academic content	Co2. Students will complete all academic requirements, including 24 courses across

independently across multiple disciplines and contexts.  Mastery Opportunity Examples	language, wellness, cultural diversity, citizenship, and practical/fine arts, to acquire a well-rounded foundation of knowledge.  • Academic Courses as Outlined in Course Requirments
Page	
Reas	oning
R1. Students build models, identify patterns, collect data, and draw conclusions to reach a solution or explanation of a problem or phenomenon.	R2. Students will be able to evaluate and defend their thinking and adjust their ideas based on new learning and create viable solutions to complex problems in unique and evolving situations, citing valid, reliable data and evidence in a variety of situations across contexts.
Mastery Opportunity Examples	<ul> <li>Course: Composition</li> <li>Course: Pan-African Studies</li> <li>Course: Art &amp; Action</li> <li>Course: Active Physics</li> <li>Course: Geometry</li> <li>Course: Statistics</li> </ul>

## **Course Requirements**

# Recommended Courses by year: Beginning Class of 2028

9th: Foundations	10th: Aspirations	11th: Revolutions	12th: Solutions
<ul> <li>Seminar I</li> <li>Composition</li> <li>CS     Discoveries &amp;     Principles</li> <li>Forensic     Science</li> <li>Geometry</li> <li>Human     Geography</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Seminar II</li> <li>Humanities:     American     Identity</li> <li>Adv. CS or     Elective</li> <li>Microbiology</li> <li>Algebra II</li> <li>Spanish I or     Elective</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Humanities: Revolutions</li> <li>Elective</li> <li>Environmental Systems</li> <li>Statistics</li> <li>Spanish II or Elective</li> <li>Culinary Chemistry or Elective</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Seminar</li> <li>Humanities: Government &amp; Policy</li> <li>Solutions</li> <li>Elective</li> <li>Elective</li> <li>Elective</li> </ul>

The following courses may be used to satisfy course requirements for students graduating before 2028. Transfer students will have their transcripts evaluated to determine requirement fulfillment on an individual student basis.

## Humanities (4 Courses Required)

Composition, American Literature, World Literature, Creative Writing, The Modern World, Authority & Rebellion, Reconstruction & Identity, American Identity, Revolutions, Human Geography

### Mathematics (3 Courses Required)

Algebra I, Algebra II, Geometry, Pre-Calculus, Calculus, Statistics, Data Analysis

## Science (3 Courses Required)

Origins, The Living World, The Environment, Forensic Science, Modern Microbiology, Environmental Policy and Practice, Culinary Chemistry

## Foreign Language (2 Courses Required)

Spanish I, Spanish II

## Wellness (1 Course Required)

OAR (Outdoor Adventure), PE I, PE II, Advanced Wellness, Anatomy

### Practical Arts (3 Courses Required)

Seminar I, II, III, Carpentry, Divers Education

## Citizenship (2 Courses Required)

Personal Finance, Government & Policy

### Cultural Diversity (2 Courses Required)

Pan-African Studies I, Pan-African Studies II, Spanish III, Art & Action, Cultural Anthropology

### Research (1 Course Required)

**Solutions** 

### Electives (3 Courses Required)

Electives are offered based on availability. Students are given an opportunity to choose electives the semester prior when the schedule permits.

Dual	Practical Art	Cultural	<u> </u>	Core Electives
Enrollment		diversity	Study	

DE Business DE History DE English DE Art	Carpentry I & II Wellness CS Discoveries & CS Principles Advanced CS Apple Swift Development	Spanish III Pan-African Studies I & II Art & Action Cultural Anthropology	Independent studies are open to students who have completed course requirements or who would like to explore an additional elective not offered.	Anatomy Creative Writing Culinary Chemistry Active Physics Flora & Fauna Digital Media Liner Notes Fencing
---------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	---------------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

## 4.2 Experiential Learning Requirement

### **Essential Experiences**

Each year, students are required to participate in the various essential experiences (ie. Camp Lynnhaven, Voyager, field trips, experiential learning weeks, community service days, etc.)

### Service Learning

As part of the Experiential Learning Requirement for graduation, students are required to complete 100 total service hours before graduation. These hours must be completed outside of school in the community. All documentation for service hours must be submitted to the main office.

### Please review the guidelines:

- All outside school volunteer hours must be with a non-profit organization.
- Helping family members, i.e. cousins, aunts, uncles, etc. move, cutting their grass, painting, etc. does not count for volunteer hours.
- All volunteer hours must be completed outside of the school day. While Lynnhaven will
  participate in volunteer activities during the school day, these will not count toward
  students' hour requirement, but will count towards the Experiential Learning
  Requirement. School-sponsored volunteer events that take place outside of school hours
  (ie Monument Ave. 10K, Campus Beautification Day) will count toward students' hour
  requirement.
- Students are responsible for tracking their hours via the *Volunteer Hour Log* and turning it into Mrs. Carter each month.
- Students who complete their 100 service hours, will receive an Orange cord at graduation.

### 4.3 Cultural Diversity Requirement

Lynnhaven School recognizes that life in a global society of the 21st century requires an ability to comprehend the dimensions of human difference. To that end, Lynnhaven requires upper school students to experience both the foundations—cultural, material, psychological, historical, social, and biological—of human difference and the operation, the promises and problems of plural societies as well as the challenges that must be addressed to achieve just, equitable, and productive societies. Through these experiences, students will exercise thoughtful consideration of issues of equity and justice, critical thinking, self-reflection, empathy, engaged global citizenship, and the skills necessary to work effectively with individuals, groups, and teams from diverse identities and perspectives.

### **4.4 Practical Arts Requirement**

Practical Arts increases student learning through "hands-on" and "practical" living situations. The courses in Practical Arts help students to make connections between their learning and personal/career choices. It is in these classes that students demonstrate responsibility and prepare themselves for life beyond the classroom

### 4.5 Citizenship Requirement

Preparing students to be productive, independent, and engaged citizens is core to Lynnhaven's mission.

### 4.6 Research Requirement

One of the most important skills one can have in the 21st century is critical thinking. Disaggregating information, designing original research, and synthesizing ideas is imperative for any student electing to attend a 4-year college or university.

### 4.7 Post-Graduate Planning

It is expected that all students will be prepared to attend a four-year college upon graduating from Lynnhaven School. After a student's sophomore year, the official college counseling process begins with students, parents, and designated college counselors. The goal is to provide them with information about the college search process. Seniors will have a chance to take the ACT at Lynnhaven in the fall, but they are recommended to begin taking it during the spring of their junior year. Parents and students are encouraged to schedule postgraduate conferences during the fall of their junior year. This will help identify potential internships or job shadowing opportunities related to their career interests.

### 4.8 College Counseling

Lynnhaven School's college counseling program is designed to help guide each student individually through what can be a complicated, yet exciting journey. Though it is very exciting, choosing a college may be the first major decision in a student's life.

### 4.9 Standardized Testing

All standardized testing is at the cost of the parent. The school will facilitate, organize, and administer the Pre-ACT & ACT test in the fall of each school year.

### 5. CODE OF CONDUCT

We believe that all members of the Lynnhaven Community must be treated with consideration and respect. Our Code of Conduct guidelines are essential for fostering our core values and maintaining a safe and respectful environment. Lynnhaven believes each student has the ability to make choices that guide their behavior, thus controlling their outcomes. We believe in a progressive discipline process that is in step with the students' age, developmental level, how the infraction impacts the school community, and the seriousness of the infraction. We encourage parents to help students to adopt the school values as their guide and compass. There may be times when a student will make a poor choice that impacts his or her learning and possibly the school community. We will strive to work together and treat each situation with care and understanding. It is equally important for families to share the same value system as the school. Lynnhaven may issue consequences because of a student's poor choice by way of a referral from a teacher or administrator. There may be times when students habitually violate the code of conduct. It is our aim to be fair (one of our values) in all decisions that impact the student and the school. There may be times when the parent and school do not agree on issued consequences. Our goal is to maintain the integrity (one of our values) of the school and family. Students and families who adopt our values as their own make an excellent adjustment to this school community. Activities contrary to these values slow the progress that is possible in a more cooperative atmosphere. Persistence and habitual actions places a student's enrollment in the school in jeopardy.

If students or parents have concerns about any student behavior or discipline that occurs in the classroom, they should feel free to speak with the appropriate teacher and or house advisor. If the matter requires deeper consideration, then the Head of School or designee will get involved. Lynnhaven School reserves the right to immediately terminate placement if your child's behavior impedes the education of their fellow students as determined by the code of conduct. Our goal is to progressively issue consequences based on the severity and or frequency of the infraction. There may be times when progressive discipline will be more immediate, based on the infraction and recommendation from the leadership team. There may be instances when the leadership team, in conjunction with the parents, develop a specialized plan to identify and address behaviors and implement formal actions to help prevent the undesirable and problematic behavior or sets of behaviors. These plans, commonly called "Behavior Contracts," will have timelines in which the actions or behavior should reasonably cease. There may be instances when expulsion is the result of failing to meet contract terms. The school reserves the right to terminate student placement due to a single behavior infraction without the creation of a behavior contract.

## 5.1 Bullying

A student, either individually or as a part of a group, shall not harass or bully others. Prohibited conduct includes, but is not limited to: physical, verbal, or written intimidation, taunting, name-calling, insults, lies, rumors, social exclusion or isolation, threatening body posture, money or possessions taken or damaged, being threatened or forced to do things, and any combination of prohibited activities. Prohibited conduct includes verbal or written conduct consisting of comments regarding the race, gender, religion, physical abilities, sexual orientation or characteristics of a person or group, or associates of the targeted person or group. Any aggressive behavior that involves unwanted negative actions and a pattern of behavior repeated over time, and an imbalance of power or strength is considered bullying and will not be tolerated. Bullying behavior can be in person or through electronic means (cyber-bullying).

Description	L1	L2	L3
Any physical involvement	X	X	X
Verbal	X	X	
Written	X	X	
Taunting	X	X	
Name calling	X	X	X
Insult	X	X	X
Lies		X	X
Rumors		X	X
Social exclusion or isolation	X		
Threatening body posture	X	X	
Money or possessions taken, but returned	X	X	
Money or possessions taken, but not returned		X	X
Being threatened or forced to do things unwillingly	X	X	X
Any discrimination by race, gender, religion, physical, sexual orientation		X	X

Bullying Consequence Menu based on Level

L1	L2	L3
Verbal warning by teacher	Any Level 1 consequence	Any level 1 or 2 consequence or combination of the two + Level 3 interventions
Written letter of apology	Lunch detention	Saturday community service
Seat change	Detention: Lunch, After School, Saturday School	Short term out of school suspension (1-3 days)
Peer mediation and conflict resolution	Restitution	Behavior contract developed
Seat change	In-school suspension	Long term revocation of privileges.
Temporary loss of classroom/school privileges	Parent/Teacher/Student/Head of School Meeting	Referral to law enforcement as required by law.
Parent/teacher conference/phone call		

## 5.2 Cheating

Cheating is defined as obtaining or attempting to obtain, or aiding another to obtain credit for work, or any improvement in evaluation of performance, by any dishonest or deceptive means. Cheating includes, but is not limited to: lying; copying from another's test or examination; discussion at any time of answers or questions on an examination or test, unless such discussion is specifically authorized by the instructor; taking or receiving copies of an exam without the permission of the instructor; using or displaying notes, "cheat sheets," or other information devices inappropriate to the prescribed test conditions; allowing someone other than the officially enrolled student to represent the same.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Lying	X	X	X
Copying from another's test or examination			X
Discussion at any time of answers or questions on an examination or test	X	X	X
Taking or receiving copies of an exam without the permission of the instructor			X
Unauthorized talking during the assessment	X	X	

Using or displaying notes, "cheat sheets," or other information devices (cell phones, computers, etc.) inappropriate to the prescribed test conditions		X	X
Possession of a cell phone or other electronic device	X	X	
Allowing someone other than the officially enrolled student to represent same			X

## 5.3 Plagiarism

Plagiarism is defined as the act of using the ideas or work of another person or persons as if they were one's own without giving proper credit to the source. Such an act is not plagiarism if it is ascertained that the ideas were arrived at through independent reasoning or logic or where the thought or idea is common knowledge. Acknowledgment of an original author or source must be made through appropriate references; i.e., quotation marks, footnotes, or commentary. Examples of plagiarism include, but are not limited to the following: the submission of a work, either in part or in whole completed by another; failure to give credit for ideas, statements, facts or conclusions which rightfully belong to another; failure to use quotation marks (or other means of setting apart, such as the use of indentation or a different font size) when quoting directly from another, whether it be a paragraph, a sentence, or even a part thereof; close and lengthy paraphrasing of another's writing without credit or originality; use of another's project or programs or part thereof without giving credit.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Submission of a work, either in part or in whole completed by another individual or source.		X	X
Failure to give credit for ideas, statements, facts or conclusions which rightfully belong to another	X	X	X
Statements, facts or conclusions which rightfully belong to another	X	X	X
Failure to use quotation marks (or other means of setting apart, such as the use of indentation or a different font size) when quoting directly from another a sentence, or even a part thereof.	X	X	
Close and lengthy paraphrasing of another's writing without credit or originality		X	X
Use of another's project or programs or part thereof without giving credit.	X	X	X

Cheating/Plagiarism Consequence Menu based on Level

L1	L2	L3
----	----	----

Verbal warning by teacher	Any L1 consequence + L2 consequences	Any L1 or L2 consequence or combination of the two + L3 interventions
Parent/Teacher Conference/Phone Call	Parent/Teacher/Student/Head of School Meeting	Receives a "0" on the assessment without chance of a retake
	Behavior contract developed	

## **5.4 Defiance**

Behavior or an attitude which shows that a student is not willing to obey persons in school authority. Examples include, by not limited to, ignoring faculty or staff requests, passive-aggressive behavior, non-compliance with directions, confrontational actions, and openly and boldly challenging resisting school authority.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Ignoring faculty or staff requests		X	X
Passive aggressive behavior		X	X
Non-compliant behavior	X	X	
Confrontational and argumentative behavior		X	X
Openly and boldly challenging resisting school authority			X

Defiance Consequence Menu based on Level

L1	L2	L3
Verbal warning by teacher	Any L1 consequence + L2 consequences	Any L1 and or L2 consequence + L3 consequences
Temporarily removed from class	Detention: After school, lunch, Saturday school.	Out of school suspension (3-5 days)
Temporarily loss of privileges	Administrative/Parent/Teacher conference	Saturday school – 4 hours max for (2-3 days)
Parent/Teacher conference/phone call	Short term out of school suspension (1-2 days)	School community service (8 hours max)

Written letter of apology	In school suspension (1-2 days)	Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
Behavior Contract	Removal from class/Schedule change/Independent Study	Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
	School community service (2 hours max)	Revocation of school privileges
		Referral to law enforcement as required by law.

## 5.5 Disruption

Students are entitled to a learning environment free of unnecessary disruption. Any physical, written, or verbal disturbance, communication or activity, within the school setting or during related activities, which may interrupt or interfere with teaching and the orderly conduct of school activities is prohibited. Any communication or activity committed outside of the school setting that interrupts or interferes with the school day is also prohibited, and subject to the Code of Student Conduct.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Physical disruption, i.e. throwing paper, pencils, etc.		X	X
Grandstanding		X	X
Sleeping in class	X	X	
Prolonged chatting	X	X	
Lateness to class or school	X	X	
Noisy electronic devices	X	X	

## Disruption Consequence Menu based on Level

L1	L2	L3
Verbal warning by teacher	Any L1 consequence + L2 consequences	Any L1 and or L2 consequence + L3 consequences

Temporarily removed from class	Detention: After school, lunch, Saturday school.	Out of school suspension (3-5 days)
Temporarily loss of privileges	Administrative/Parent/Teacher conference	Saturday school – 4 hours max for (2-3 days)
Parent/Teacher conference/phone call	Short term out of school suspension (1-2 days)	School community service (8 hours max)
Written letter of apology	In school suspension (1-2 days)	Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
Behavior Contract	Removal from class/Schedule change/Independent Study	Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
	School community service (2 hours max)	Revocation of school privileges
		Referral to law enforcement as required by law.

# **5.6 Disrespect**

Behavior that is a lack or regard or respect for school authority. Examples include, but not limited to willfully not following directions, talking back to faculty and staff, willfully interrupting, inappropriate language towards peers, school authority, inappropriate language towards school authority or students.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Willfully not following directions		X	X
Talking back to faculty and staff	X	X	X
Willfully interrupting		X	X
Inappropriate language towards peers	X	X	X
Inappropriate language towards faculty or staff			X
Inappropriate language towards Head of School			X

Disrespect consequence menu based on level

L1	L2	L3
Verbal warning by teacher	Any L1 consequence + L2 consequences	Any L1 and or L2 consequence + L3 consequences
Temporarily removed from class	Detention: After school, lunch, Saturday school.	Out of school suspension (3-5 days)
Temporarily loss of privileges	Administrative/Parent/Teacher conference	Saturday school – 4 hours max for (2-3 days)
Parent/Teacher conference/phone call	Short term out of school suspension (1-2 days)	School community service (8 hours max)
Written letter of apology	In school suspension (1-2 days)	Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
Behavior Contract	Removal from class/Schedule change/Independent Study	Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
	School community service (2 hours max)	Revocation of school privileges

#### **5.7 Tobacco Products**

All students are PROHIBITED from the use and possession of tobacco products, to include smokeless tobacco, matches, electronic cigarettes and vaporizers, and lighters on school property. This prohibition includes all school related locations and activities (i.e., bus stops, school buses, extracurricular activities, school-sponsored events, etc.).

Description	L1	L2	L3
Possession, Distributing, Smoking, or Chewing of any tobacco products or paraphernalia to include, electronic cigarettes, vaporizers, matches, tobacco, dip, etc.			X

Tobacco Products Consequence Menu

L3

Out of school suspension (10 days)

Saturday school -4 hours max (2 days) – Parents will be billed \$60.00 per Saturday to compensate faculty

**Behavior Contract** 

Supervised school community service (20 hours minimum)

Long term suspension with an opportunity to complete school year in an alternative format

Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return

Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return

Revocation of school privileges

Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

#### **5.8 Substance Abuse**

Students shall not possess alcohol or alcoholic beverages on school property or at a school-sponsored event with the intent to sell, give, share, pass on to, take orders for, or arrange for a sale to occur before, during, or after school. Students shall not use, be under the influence of, or have in their possession any alcoholic beverages on school property or at any school-sponsored event.

The possession of a Schedule I & II Drug (e.g. heroin, cocaine, opium, morphine, LSD, methamphetamines, ecstasy, Adderall®, Hydrocodone®, Percocet®, Ritalin®, Oxycontin®, etc., includes controlled substance analogs and cannabimimetic agents as further described in the Definitions section of this Code).

Description	L1	L2	L3
Possession, Under the influence, Distributing, Selling, or Ingesting alcohol, drugs (schedule I & II)			X

Substance Abuse Consequence Menu

L3	
Refer to counseling	
Expulsion from Lynnhaven with or without an opportunity to return	

Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

## 5.9 Assaulting/Fighting/Threats

Actions, comments, or written messages intended to cause others to fight, which may result in a fight, or that obstruct staff from trying to break up a fight/altercation are prohibited. Intentionally hitting, shoving, scratching, biting, kicking, blocking the passage of, or throwing objects at a student is prohibited. Conveying by gestures, notes, or verbal comments with the intent to cause bodily injury or to deprive a student of his/her rights is prohibited. Fighting involving two or more parties in conflict when they are striking each other for the purpose of causing harm or injury is prohibited. This action may extend to mutual shoving, wrestling, or other aggressive actions which may result in the danger of harm or injury to either party, bystanders, or school property.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Intentionally hitting, shoving, scratching, biting, kicking, blocking the passage of, or throwing objects at a student is prohibited.			X
Conveying by gestures, notes, or verbal comments with the intent to cause bodily injury or to deprive a student of his/her rights.		X	X
Actions, comments, or written messages intended to cause others to fight.		X	X

Assaulting/Fighting/Threats Consequence Menu based on level

L2	L3
Out of school suspension (1-2 days)	Out of school suspension (10 days)
Saturday school – 4 hours max (1 day)	Saturday school – 4 hours max (2 days) – Parents will be billed \$60.00 per Saturday to compensate faculty
In school suspension – Full Day – (1-2 days)	Supervised school community service (20 hours minimum)
Conference with Head of School, Parent, and Student	Behavior Contract
Behavior contract	Schedule/class change
	Long term suspension with an opportunity to complete school year in an alternative format

Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
Revocation of school privileges
Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

#### 5.10 Larceny/Theft

Stealing another person's possessions without right or permission. The possession of stolen property is considered theft. This includes theft of money, personal or public property and/or theft involving breaking and entering, including lockers and unauthorized or illegal use of technology.

Description	L3
Stealing another person's possessions without right or permission	X

Larceny/Theft consequence menu based on level

L3	
Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return	
Restitution via written contract	
Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required	

#### 5.11 Trespassing

Any student who has been suspended or expelled from attendance may be considered a trespasser if he/she/they appears on any Lynnhaven School property, or at any Lynnhaven School activity, during the suspension/expulsion period. Violation of this section will be considered an additional infraction and will require a separate consequence including notification of law enforcement if necessary. Students who arrive at school before school opens or remain after the close of their school day without specific need or appropriate authorization and supervision may be considered trespassers. Any student who is requested by an administrator to leave school property is expected to do so immediately. Failure to do so may be considered trespassing. No student or other person may attend or visit Lynnhaven School as a guest during the regular school day without authorization from the school's administration.

Description	L1	L2	L3	
-------------	----	----	----	--

Enter school grounds after being suspended or expelled from attendance			X
Students, without parent or guardian supervision, who arrive at school before school opens or remain after the close of their school day without specific need or appropriate authorization and supervision	X	X	X
A student who is requested by an administrator or faculty to leave school property and refuses to do so immediately.		X	X

Trespassing consequence menu based on level

L1	L2	L3
Administrator/Parent/Student conference	L1 consequences and or + L2	L1, L2 and or + L3 consequence
Individuals will be asked to leave and return during appropriate times.	Detention: After school, lunch, and or Saturday school (1-2 days max each occurrence)	Local authorities are notified and charges of trespassing will be made on behalf of Lynnhaven School
Written letter of apology	In-School Detention (1 day max)	Out of school suspension (max 3 days)
	Written letter of reprimand.	In – School suspension (max 2 days)
	Written letter of reprimand.	* `

#### 5.12 Vandalism

Vandalism is the willful marring, defacing, or destruction of school property, including leased property or any employee's or other person's property. This infraction includes, but is not limited to: the buildings, both exteriors and interiors thereof, books, computer equipment and software, school buses, private automobiles, school grounds, and property as designated above. Causing, intent to cause, or attempt to cause damage to school or personal property of others is prohibited.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Willful marring, defacing, or destruction of school property, including leased property or any employees or other person's property.		X	X

### Vandalism consequence menu based on level

L2	L3
Out of school suspension (1-2 days)	Any L2 and + L3 consequence
Community service hours (max 10)	Out of school suspension (5-10 days)
Saturday school – 4 hours max (1 day)	Saturday school – 4 hours max (2 days) – Parents will be billed \$60.00 per Saturday to compensate faculty
In school suspension – Full Day – (1-2 days)	Supervised school community service (20 hours minimum)
Conference with Head of School, Parent, and Student	Behavior Contract
Behavior contract	Schedule/class change
Parents must pay restitution of the full amount along with shipping and handling within 7	Long term suspension with an opportunity to complete school year in an alternative format
Temporary Revocation of school privileges	Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
	Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
	Revocation of school privileges
	Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

#### **5.13 Sexual Harassment**

Sexual harassment includes any unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other inappropriate verbal, written, electronic, or physical conduct of a sexual nature that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment. A student shall not sexually harass another student or any school employee, volunteer, student teacher, or any other person present in school facilities or at school functions. Examples include, but not limited to: unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations, or propositions, unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually degrading descriptions; graphic comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation; targeted sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures toward others; spreading sexual rumors; )

inappropriate or suggestive sexual gestures; cornering or blocking of normal movements; displaying sexually suggestive objects in an educational environment; or displaying sexually explicit behavior. Sexual harassment/inappropriate sexual behavior may be in person or by electronic means.

Description	L2	L3
Verbal unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors		X
Electronic or written unwelcome sexual advances, requests or sexual favors		X
Graphic comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation	X	X
Targeted sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures toward others; spreading sexual rumors	X	X
Inappropriate or suggestive sexual gestures; cornering or blocking of normal movements		X
Displaying sexually suggestive objects in an educational environment		X
Displaying sexually explicit behavior	X	X

### Sexual Harassment consequence menu based on level

L2	L3
Out of school suspension (2-3 days)	Any L2 and + L3 consequence
Community service hours (10-15 hours)	Out of school suspension (5-10 days)
Saturday school – 8 hours max (2 days min)	Saturday school – 4 hours max (2 days) – Parents will be billed \$60.00 per Saturday to compensate faculty
In school suspension – Full Day – (2-3 days)	Supervised school community service (20 hours minimum)
Conference with Head of School, Parent, and Student	Behavior Contract
Behavior contract	Schedule/class change

Written letter of apology	Long term suspension with an opportunity to complete school year in an alternative format
Temporary Revocation of school privileges	Expulsion from Lynnhaven with an opportunity to return
Refer to counseling	Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
	Revocation of school privileges
	Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

### **5.14 Transportation**

Proper behavior is required to, from, and while riding the bus to assure that the rights of others are respected. Students are required to listen to and follow the directions of the bus driver. Riding a school bus is a privilege. Students who violate the Code of Student Conduct and designated bus rules on the school bus may lose the privilege of riding the bus for a specified period of time or permanently. In addition, other consequences may apply.

\*Students are expected to follow the Code of Conduct in the same manner on school buses and or sanctioned school trips.

Description	L1	L2	L3
Leaving the seat while the bus is in motion	X	X	X
Throwing objects		X	X
Eating or drinking on the bus	X		

Transportation consequence menu based on level

L1	L2	L3
Administrator/Parent/Student conference	L1 consequences and or + L2	L1, L2 and or + L3 consequence

Verbal warning by transportation driver	Detention: After school, lunch, and or Saturday school (1-2 days min each occurrence)	Local authorities are notified and charges of trespassing will be made on behalf of Lynnhaven School
Written letter of apology	In-School Detention 1-2 days	Out of school suspension 1-2 days
	Temporary suspension from transporting on the next 2 school-sanctioned trips	In – School suspension 2-3 days

#### **5.15** Arson

The use, intent to use, or threat to use an explosive, including but not limited to: fireworks, cherry bombs, smoke/stink bombs, or any device contributing to a fire or representation of an explosive device, including a bomb threat, is prohibited. These actions include bringing, receiving, and/or storing the items on school property or at a school-sponsored event. The use or intent to use any material (matches, lighters, etc.) which may result in a fire on school property or setting fire to the property of students, staff, or volunteers is prohibited unless specifically authorized by school officials.

Description	L3
The use, intent to use, or threat to use an explosive, including but not limited to: fireworks, cherry bombs, smoke/stink bombs, or any device contributing to a fire or representation of an explosive device, including a bomb threat,	X

Arson consequence menu based on level

L3
10 Day suspension from Lynnhaven School + a Behavior Contract
Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return
Long term suspension + alternative learning format
Restitution via written contract

Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

#### 5.16 Dangerous Weapon or Firearm

In accordance with § 22.1-277.07 of the Code of Virginia, a student who is determined to have possessed a firearm or an air rifle or BB gun on school property, in a school vehicle, or at a school-sponsored event may be expelled. The Head of School or, his designee may determine, based on the facts of the particular case, that special circumstances exist and no disciplinary action or another disciplinary action is appropriate. The possession of look-alike weapons, including, but not limited to, cap guns, squirt or water guns, toy pistols, comb knives, etc., is prohibited on school property. The possession of dangerous objects is prohibited. Dangerous objects include the representation of items commonly understood to be inappropriate to school activities. These items include, but are not limited to, bullets, machetes, brass knuckles, switchblades, knives, box cutters, other sharp objects, Chinese stars, mace, firecrackers, fireworks, stink bombs, etc. Also included is the misuse of commonplace objects, including but not limited to keys, locks, etc. The possession, use, or representation of a firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, operative or inoperative, on any school property or during any school activity, is prohibited unless specifically authorized by school officials. Firearms which meets the definition of firearm in the Code of Virginia. The possession or representation of any explosive or flammable material considered to have the capacity to create an explosion or to start a fire, including, but not limited to, firecrackers, lighter fluid, and other flammable substances, is prohibited unless specifically authorized by the school administration.

Possession of a Pneumatic Weapon (includes pellet guns, BB guns, CO2 air pistols, stun weapons, paintball guns, and any other device utilizing air driven projectiles) is prohibited.

Description	L3
Possession of any firearm or an air rifle or BB gun on school property, in a school vehicle, or at a school-sponsored event	X
The possession of look-alike weapons, including, but not limited to, cap guns, squirt or water guns, toy pistols, comb knives, etc	X
The possession of dangerous objects is prohibited. Dangerous objects include the representation of items commonly understood to be inappropriate to school activities. These items include, but are not limited to, bullets, machetes, brass knuckles, switchblades, knives, box cutters, other sharp objects, Chinese stars, mace, firecrackers, fireworks, stink bombs, etc. Also included is the misuse of commonplace objects, including but not limited to keys, locks, etc.	X
The possession or representation of any explosive or flammable material considered to have the capacity to create an explosion or to start a fire, including, but not limited to, firecrackers, lighter fluid, and other flammable substances, is prohibited	X

Possession of a Pneumatic Weapon (includes pellet guns, BB guns, CO2 air pistols, stun	X
weapons, paintball guns, and any other device utilizing air driven projectiles)	

Dangerous Weapon or Firm Arm consequence menu

### L3

10 Day suspension from Lynnhaven School + a Behavior Contract + Revocation of school privileges

Expulsion from Lynnhaven without an opportunity to return

Long term suspension with or without an option for an alternative learning format at the expense of the parent.

Referral to law enforcement and or local government agencies as required

#### 5.17 Technology

Students are PROHIBITED from:

- 1. Using technology for any illegal purpose
- 2. Creating unauthorized networks of any kind
- 3. Downloading, uploading, importing, or intentionally viewing material that promotes the use of illegal drugs, alcohol, pornography, or illegal and/or violent behavior
- 4. Introducing non-approved software, hardware, or resources into the Lynnhaven network or clients. Approval can be sought through the Dean of Technology and Innovation
- 5. Saving, transferring, or loading non-school related material on a school file server
- 6. Running software applications from a USB device. Failure to honor the above regulations may result in the restriction of Internet privileges and/or the restriction of other technology access in addition to disciplinary action up to and including criminal charges.
- 7. Unauthorized use of cell phones or devices. Examples of dual violations are (i) computer hacking or trespassing, (ii) harassment, threats, or cyberbullying via computer, and (iii) computer fraud (see Title 18.2 of the Code of Virginia). Refer to the technology agreement in the appendix.

L1	L2	L3
Verbal warning + loss of technology privilege + school privilege for 3-5 days	L2 and or + L2	L1, L2 and or + L3
Administrator/Parent/Student conference	In school suspension 1-2 days + loss of technology for 5-7 days	Out of school suspension + behavior contract + loss of technology and school privileges for 10 days

Detention: After school and or lunch detention 1-2 days + loss of technology privilege + loss of school privileges for 3-5 days	Detention: After school and or lunch 3-5 days + loss of technology privileges for 5-7 days	Out of school suspension + behavior contract + loss of technology and school privileges for 20 days
	Saturday school for 1-2 days + loss of technology and school privileges for 5-7 days	Expulsion for the remainder of the year with or without the opportunity to return + loss of technology and school privileges as appropriate.

#### **5.18** Grievance Procedure

Lynnhaven School's aim is to work in partnership with families. Parents should feel free to contact their child's advisor before contacting the Head of School to file a grievance as the result of a consequence issued by the School. Lynnhaven reserves the right to conduct an Administrative Hearing to address chronic misbehavior and habitual code of conduct violations. There will be a Chief Hearing Officer, a Deputy Hearing Officer, the student, and parent. present during the hearing.

#### **5.19 Student Behavior Management**

The Commonwealth of Virginia regulations requires Lynnhaven School to document that the following acts, related to student behavior management, are prohibited:

- 1. Restraint and seclusion, except when necessary to protect the student or others from personal harm, injury, or death, and when other less restrictive interventions were unsuccessful
- Prone "face down" restraints, mechanical restraints, pharmacological restraints, and any other restraint that restricts breathing or harms the child or interferes with the child's ability to communicate;
- 3. Deprivation of food or drinking water;
- 4. Limitation on contacts and visits from a student's probation officer, social worker, or other service provider as appropriate;
- 5. Any action that is humiliating, degrading, or abusive;
- 6. Corporal punishment;
- 7. Deprivation of approved prescription medication or other necessary services;
- 8. Denial of access to toilet facilities;
- 9. Application of aversive stimuli;
- 10. Strip and body cavities;
- 11. Discipline, restraint, or implementation of behavior management plans by other students

#### 6. ACCEPTABLE USE OF TECHNOLOGY POLICY

Use of technology at Lynnhaven School should reflect a genuine respect for health and safety of each member of the school community; a desire to shape an educational environment which encourages learning and involvement; and, a willingness to show respect for one another, the school, and for the school property. Technology includes but is not limited to computers, other hardware, electronic devices including any cell phone, tablet, software, Internet, Intranet, email, and all other networks.

#### 6.1 Purpose of Technology

Technology provides access for students and staff to resources from around the world. Expanding technologies take students and staff beyond the confines of the classroom, and provide tremendous opportunities for enhancing, extending, and rethinking the learning process. The goal in providing these resources is to promote educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication with the support and supervision of parents, teachers, and support staff.

#### 6.2 Risks of Use

With access to computers and people all over the world comes the potential availability of material that may not be considered to be of educational value in the context of the school setting, or that may be harmful or disruptive. Lynnhaven School cannot completely predict or control what users may or may not locate. We believe that the educational value of limited access to the information, interaction, and research capabilities that technology offers outweighs the possibility that users may obtain or encounter material that is not consistent with our educational goals.

In accordance with the Children's Internet Protection Act, Lynnhaven School installs and operates filtering software to limit users' Internet access to materials that are obscene, pornographic, harmful to children, or otherwise inappropriate, or disruptive to the educational process, notwithstanding that such software may in certain cases block access to other materials as well. Lynnhaven School cannot guarantee that filtering software will in all instances successfully block access to materials deemed harmful, indecent, offensive, pornographic, or otherwise inappropriate. The use of filtering software does not negate or otherwise affect the obligations of users to abide by the terms of this policy and to refrain from accessing such inappropriate materials.

No technology is guaranteed to be error-free or totally dependable, nor is it safe when used irresponsibly. Among other matters, Lynnhaven School is not liable or responsible for:

- Any information that may be lost, damaged, or unavailable due to technical, or other, difficulties;
- The accuracy or suitability of any information that is retrieved through technology;
- Breaches of confidentiality;
- Defamatory material; or
- The consequences that may come from failure to follow Lynnhaven School's policy and procedures governing the use of technology.

#### **6.3** Acceptable Use

Student users may access technology for educational purposes only. The actions of student users accessing networks through Lynnhaven School reflect on the school; therefore, student users must

conduct themselves accordingly by exercising good judgment and complying with this policy and any accompanying administrative regulations and guidelines. Students are responsible for their behavior and communications using Lynnhaven School computers and networks.

#### Student users of technology shall

- Use or access technology only for educational purposes.
- Comply with copyright laws and software licensing agreements.
- Understand that email and network files are not private. Network administrators may review files and communications to maintain system integrity and monitor responsible student use.
- Respect the privacy rights of others.
- Be responsible at all times for the proper use of technology, including proper use of access privileges, complying with all required system security identification codes, and not sharing any codes or passwords.
- Maintain the integrity of technological resources from potentially damaging messages, physical abuse, or viruses.
- Abide by the policies and procedures of networks and systems linked by technology.

Students may not use technology for improper uses. These uses include, but are not limited to:

- Any and all illegal purposes;
- Any and all obscene or pornographic purposes, including, but not limited to, retrieving or viewing sexually explicit material;
- Any and all discriminatory purposes, including harassment and bullying of individuals based on race, gender, religion, sexual orientation, or disability, among others;
- Any and all purposes that would violate state, federal or international law, including
  - Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), which governs students' rights to privacy and the confidential maintenance of certain information including, but not limited to, a student's grades and test scores;
  - Copyright laws;
  - o Cyberbullying laws; and
  - Sexting laws.
- Any use of profanity, obscenity, or language that is offensive or threatening;
- Reposting or forwarding personal communications without the author's prior consent;
- Reposting or forwarding of junk mail, chain letters, or inappropriate or offensive jokes;
- Destruction, alteration, disfigurement or unauthorized access of hardware, software, or firmware;
- Obtaining financial gain or Transacting any business or commercial activities;
- Plagiarizing (claiming another person's writings as your own);
- Political advocacy;
- Disrupting the use of others to any process, program or tool, including downloading or otherwise spreading computer viruses;
- Engaging in hacking of any kind, including, but not limited to, the illegal or unauthorized access;
- Allowing others to use Property issued under the program without authorization, including students whose access privileges have been suspended or revoked;
- Soliciting or distributing information with the intent to incite violence, cause personal harm, damage a person's character, or to harass another individual.
- Any and all other purposes that would violate the Student Code of Conduct.

Disciplinary Actions: Violations of this policy, or any administrative regulations and guidelines governing the use of technology, may result in disciplinary action which could include loss of technology use, suspension or expulsion, or other appropriate disciplinary action. Violations of local, state or federal law may subject students to prosecution by appropriate law enforcement authorities.

#### **6.4 Internet Safety**

Students must take steps to ensure their safety on the internet, including, but not limited to, the following rules:

- Students should never give out identifying information such as home address, school name, or telephone number to others on the Internet or by email, including in a public message such as chat room or newsgroups. If a person asks for such personal information, students must have approval of their parent or guardian before providing the information.
- Students should not post photographs of themselves in newsgroups or on websites that are available to the public.
- Students should not arrange a face-to-face meeting with someone they "meet" on the Internet or by email without parental/guardian permission. If a meeting is arranged, the meeting must be in a public place and the student's parent/guardian must attend.
- Student Users should not respond to messages that are suggestive, obscene, belligerent, threatening, or make a student user feel uncomfortable. If a student receives such a message, he or she should provide a copy of the message to his or her parent or guardian immediately. If the message requires school action (e.g., bullying) the student's parent should provide a copy to the Head of School.

Lynnhaven School recommends that parents/guardians read and follow the U.S Department of Justice Guidelines for Parents/Guardians on Internet Safety located at: <a href="https://www.justice.gov/criminal-ceos/children-internet-safety">https://www.justice.gov/criminal-ceos/children-internet-safety</a>

#### **6.5 Student Privacy**

Lynnhaven School may provide students with access to online educational services and websites through contracts with educational companies and vendors. Students may be provided with a username and password to access educational content on these websites. Such websites may collect personally identifiable information from students including usernames and passwords. Specific website company/vendor privacy policies should be consulted regarding the collection of information, including information for students under the age of 13. Please contact Lynnhaven School at any time regarding privacy questions or concerns or to request to review what personally identifiable information has been provided by the school. As requested, Lynnhaven School can also provide contact information for the educational companies and vendors for such websites for parents to contact directly. Parents can also contact Lynnhaven School (and/or the website company/vendor) at any time to request that they delete the personally identifiable information of their child and disallow further access. Please note that this removal could prevent the student from having access to critical instructional materials.

Lynnhaven has the right to inspect any computer or other electronic device and the contents contained therein on demand with or without notice to the user.

#### 7. PERSONAL CELL PHONES/ELECTRONIC DEVICES

There are many applications that are educational and useful for students in the 21st century classroom; however, a student also has a responsibility to use electronic devices in a safe and appropriate manner that will not distract themselves or others.

Cell phone technology is permitted at school; however, phones must be put away in a designated area during class time, unless otherwise permitted.

During free-time such as lunch, students may use their device recreationally; however, the acceptable use policy governing the use of school technology applies to personal devices when on campus or during school activities. Students will be permitted to use their cell phones after school while on campus with expressed verbal consent from a teacher.

The school reserves the right to temporarily confiscate phones and other electronic devices if used inappropriately by students. Examples of inappropriate use include: phones ringing in class, texting during school hours, cheating, cyber bullying, circumnavigating the firewall, inappropriate websites, and unauthorized photography, video, or audio recording.